NOTICE OF HEARING
BY THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

under the

LICENSING ACT 2003

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - FERNDALE
STORES, 36-38 FERNDALE ROAD, NEW MILTON

Date and Time:

Place:

Telephone enquiries to:

WEDNESDAY, 22 JUNE 2016, AT 10.00 AM*

COUNCIL CHAMBER, APPLETREE COURT,

LYNDHURST

Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000

023 8028 5588 - ask for Melanie Stephens
E-mail: melanie.stephens@nfdc.gov.uk

These papers are also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

1. APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - FERNDALE STORES, 36-38

FERNDALE ROAD, NEW MILTON (Pages 1 - 50)

THE RELEVANT PAPERS ARE ATTACHED

A large scale map of the premises will be available at the hearing

To:

Members of the Sub-Committee:
Clir Ms L C Ford
Clir R L Frampton

Parties to the Hearing:

Mr B Dissanayaka — Applicant

Ms G Barrett — Supporter

Ms L Yapp - Supporter

Mr and Mrs Bruce-Burgess - Objectors
Mr and Mrs D Gray - Objectors

Mr and Mrs A Hall - Objectors

Mrs and Mr R Kelly and Mr C Kelly -
Objectors

Mr and Mrs Phillimore - Objectors
Mr and Mrs J Rogerson - Objectors
Mr and Mrs Thomas - Objectors

Ms D Thorne - Objector

Mr and Mrs Wallace - Objectors

ClIir L E Harris

Copies for Information:

Clir Mrs J Cleary and J G Ward —
Local Members

New Milton Town Council

Licensing — P Weston

Legal Services — Miss G O’'Rourke /
Ms L Clark / Mrs R Rutins /

Mrs A Wilson



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22 JUNE 2016

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - FERNDALE STORES, 36-38
FERNDALE ROAD, NEW MILTON

1.  INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider an application to vary a premises licence
under section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003.

2. APPLICATION

# 2.1 Mr Bandula Dissanayaka has made an application to vary the premises licence for
Ferndale Stores, 36-38 Ferndale Road, New Milton. The application seeks to permit
an earlier sale of alcohol from 06:00 hours daily and the removal of certain embedded
restrictions inherited from the Licensing Act 1964.

The application is attached as Appendix 1.
3. REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 There are no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities.

# 3.2 Representations have been received from 11 local residents, two supporting the
application and nine objecting, these are attached as Appendix 2.

4. REQUIREMENTS FOR A HEARING

4.1 The Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to determine the application where
relevant representations addressing the licensing objectives are made. These being:

The prevention of Crime and Disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance;
The protection of children from harm.

# 4.2 Guidance about the licensing objectives issued by the Home Office under section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 is attached as Appendix 3.

4.3 In determining the application the Licensing Sub-Committee must give appropriate
weight to:

The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;
The relevant representations presented by all the parties;

The Home Office guidance;

The Council's own Statement of Licensing Policy.

# 4.4 Additional guidance about determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives is attached as Appendix 4.

5. CONCLUSION
5.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the application and any relevant

representations, consider which of the following measures are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives:

Page 1



e Modify the conditions of the licence; or
¢ Reject the whole or part of the application.

6. RECOMMENDATION

6.1 That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines the application.

Further Information: Background papers:

Paul Weston Licensing Act 2003

Licensing Services Section 182 Guidance

Tel: 023 8028 5505 NFDC Statement of Licensing Policy

Email: licensing@nfdc.gov.uk

Page 2



M pp&n@li ol

Licre [os [@osgq,

190, 0

Forest

-msmu:“r c@uwmt
Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

IWe BANDULA DISSANAYAKA

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of
the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number
43/5

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

FERNDALE STORES, 36-38 FERNDALE ROAD

NEW MILTON
Post town HAMPSHIRE Postcode BH25 5EY
Telephone number at premises (if any) 01425618165
Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £ £11,000

Part 2 — Applicant details

Daytime contact
telephone number 01425618165

E-mail address {optional)

Current postal address if SAME‘ AS ABOVE
different from premises .

address

Post town Postcode

Page 3

’




Part 3 - Variation
Please tick as appropriate

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible? VYes O]
No

DD MM YYYY

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? EEEEEEN

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note 1)

EXTEND THE SALE OF ALCOHOL HOURS

THE SALE BY THE RETAIL OF ALCOHOL FOR CONSUMPTION OFF THE PERMISES
ONLY - PROPOSED FOR MONDAY TO SUNDAY 6:00-23:00 (6:00AM TO 11:00PM)

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people
are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state | N/A J
the number expected to attend:

Page 4




Part 4 Operating Schedule

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change
if this application to vary is successful,

Provision of regulated entertainment

a)
b)

c)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (9)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Sale by retail of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 5

Please tick all that apply

L

O Oo0doogod




A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place indoors

Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors

timings {please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 8) Outdoors

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed : State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

Page 6




B

Films

Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or
outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors

guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors O

Day |Start | Finish Both  |[

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

Page 7




C

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 8)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read
guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Page 8




D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take
lace indoors or outdoors or both — please tick | Indoors

(please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat ‘

Sun

Page 9




E

Live music

Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please | Indoors

read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors 0

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of |ive music
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

Page 10




F

Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the playing of regorded music take place
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick (please Indoors

read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors ]

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

Page 11




G

Performances of
dance

Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the performance of dance take place
indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors

(please read guidance nhote 2)

tdoors
guidance note 6) Ou
Day | Start | Finish Both [l
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance
(please read guidance note 4)
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
- the performance of dance at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat
Sun

10

Page 12




H

Anything of a similar
description fo that
falling within (e}, (f) or

(9)
Standard days and
timings (please read

guidance note 6)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish | Will this entertainment take place indoors or | |ndoors ]
outdoors or both ~ please tick (please read .
Mon guidance note 2) Outdoors | [
Both ]
Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Wed
Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), {f) or {g) (please read
guidance note 4)
Fri
Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the entertainment of a similar description to that falling within
------ (e), (f) or {q) at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sun

11

Page 13




Late night refreshment

Will the provision of late night refreshment

Standard days and take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors

timings (please read please tick (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 8) Outdoors O]

Day Start Finish Both ]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the provision of [ate night refreshment at different times, to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read

Sat guidance note 5) :

Sun

12

Page 14




J

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption | On the
Standard days and ~ please tick (please read guidance note 7) premises O
timings (please read P :
guidance note 6) Off the

premises
Day | Start | Finish Both OJ
Mon ) . State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please

6:00 | 23:00 -
read guidance note 4)

Tue 6.00| 23:00 SAME AS PROPOSED STANDARD HOURS
Wed | 6:00 | 23:00
Thur 6.00| 23:00 Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

6:00| 23:00
N/A
Sat 6:00 | 23:00
Sun 6:00 | 23:00
K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 8).

N/A

13

Page 15




L

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read

guidance note 6)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4)

N/A

Day Start Finish
Mon 6.00| 23:00
Tue 6:00 | 23:00
Wed 6:00 | 23:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be

open to the public at different times from those listed in the
Fhur 6:00 | 23:00 | column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Fri

6:0 .
0] 23:00 N/A

Sat 6:00 | 23:00
Sun 6:00| 23:00

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be
removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.

CURRENT SALE OF
ALCOHOL HOURS

MON 8:00-23:00
TUE 8:00-23:00
WED 8:00-23:00
THURS8:00-23:00
FRI 8:00-23:00
SAT 8:00-23:00
SUN 8:00-22:30

PROPOSED SALE OF ALCOHOL HOURS

MON 6:00-23:00
TUE 6:00-23:00
WED 6:00-23:00
THUR 6:00-23:00
FRI 6:00-23:00
SAT 6:00-23:00
SUN 6:00-23:00

14

Page 16




Please tick as appropriate

® [have enclosed the premises licence
® | have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or
part of it below

%
~

Reasons why [ have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

HERE | HAVE ENCLOSED THE COPY OF THE PREMISES LICENCE AND
THE RELEVANT PART

NOTE: | DO NOT HAVE THE ORIGINAL

15

Page 17




M

Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a
result of the proposed variation;

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 9)

@ KEEP AN INCIDENT BOOK ON THE PREMISES

® CONTROL OF THE LITTER MEANS ALL REFUSE GENERATED BY THE
PREMISES WILL BE STORED SECURELY IN A DESIGNATED AREA OR
IN A BIN

@ TAKE EXTRA CARE ON THE CHILDREN ADMISSION IN THE PREMISES

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

O®INSTALL THE CCTV SYSTEM WITH CLEAR IMAGE NOTICE TO PREVENT
THE CRIME OBJECTIVES

®MAKE SURE NOT TO SELL THE ALCOHOL TO THE DRUNK PERSON

®STAFFS WILL BE WELL TRAINED

O®ROLLER METAL WINDOW SHUTTER WILL BE FIXED

¢) Public safety

® INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL LIGHTING FIXED TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC
SAFETY

® RE-TRAINING AND IMPLEMENTATION OF UNDERAGE ID CHECK

@ NO VIOLENT AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

o PREMISES WILL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES IN GOOD AND SAFTY
CONDITION FOR PUBLIC USE

d) The prevention of public nuisance

® PLACE NOTICE AT THE ENTRANCE AND EXIT TO REMIND CUSTOMERS TO
LEAVE QUIETLY

® PUT A BIN OUTSUDE THE ENTRANCE OF THE PREMISES

o MAKE SURE NO EMPTY BOTTLES, BIN AND RUBBISH AROUND THE
PREMISES

e) The protection of children from harm

ORE- TRAIN THE STAFFS TO CHECK THE PROOF OF AGE (PASSPORT,
DRIVING LICENCE AND CITIZEN CARD)

O®UPDATE THE TILL TO WARN THE CASHIER TO ASK ID ON
UNDERAGE PRODUCTS

® TRAIN THE STAFFS TO RECORD THE RUFUSAL BOOK UP TO DATE WITH
THE CLEAR EXPLANATION

16

Page 18




Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
e | have made or enclosed payment of the fee.

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.

e | understand that | must now advertise my application.
® | have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected.

K K K K

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING
LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT
2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION.

Part 5 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)
Signature of applicant {the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or

other duly authorised agent (please read guidance note 11). If signing on behalf of the
applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature
Date BANDULA DISSANAYAKA
Capacity PROPRIETOR

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current
premises licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read
guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signhature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 13)

Post town | Post code |

Telephone number (ifany) |

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

17

Page 19




Notes for Guidance

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which
the licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates, If you wish
to make that type of change to the premises licence, you should make a new premises
licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.

10.
11.

12.

13.

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your
application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.

Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as approprrate (indoors
may include a tent).

For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or
unamplified.

For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises'. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick ‘both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardiess
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The application form must be sighed.

An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents
must sign the application form.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

18

Page 20




. |Gesd Fnday, 08: OOhrs 22:30hrs R

: Where the hcence authorlses supphes of alcohol whether theseareon andlor of sup

ph: B

Alcohol is supplled for consumptlon OFF the premlses only S

Dlsab ty Helpline
023 8028 5000

Page 21 -




Part 2 '
Name, (regrstered) address, telephone number and emarl (where relevant) of holder of

premises licence
Bandula Dissanayaka : :
208a Foundry Lane : Telephone:
Shirley ’ :

Southampton

Hampshire Email: -
8015 34X

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charrty number (where

applicable)

Name, address and telephone number of desrg nated premrses supervrsor where the premises

licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
Bandula Dissanayaka

208a Foundry Lane ~ ~ . ‘ Telephone:
Shirley A g
Southampton :

Hampshire . o o Email: .
$015 3JX

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
2012/01594/02 SPEN

Southampton City Council

The licence is granted by New Forest District Council, as licensing authdrity pursuant to the
Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made thereunder.

Date licence issued: 22/06/2015
‘Date licence commences: 22/06/2015

Date first licence came into force: 24/11/2005

o

‘Head of Public Health & Community Safety
{Authorised Officer)

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditioris
Where licence authorises supply of alcohol

(_1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervnsor in respeot of the
premises licence, or
(b} at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

(2) - Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorlsed by .a
person whao holds a personal licence. .

Page 22




(Additional Condition with effect from 28-iay 2014)

1.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumptron on or.off the
premises for a price Wthh is less than the permrtted price. 4 .

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-

(a) "duty” is to be construed in acoordance wrth the Alcohollc quuor Dutres Act 1979
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - » |
P=D +(DxV)

where - |

(i) P is the permitted price

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iiiy V is the rate of value added tax chargeable In reiation to the alcohal as |f the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; S

(c) “relevant person” means, in relatlon to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence - o

(i) the halder of the premises llce‘nce,

(i) the desrgnated premrses supervrsor (ifany)i in respect of. such a licence, or

(i) the personal lrcence holder who makes or authorlses a supply of alcohol under such a llcence
(d) “relevant person means in relation to premlses in respect of WhICh there Isin force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacrty which

enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in quéstion; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994, e e _ o .

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applles where the permltted prrce given by Paragraph (b ) b) of paragraph 2 on a
day (“the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day") as

‘a result of & change to thé rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol

which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginmng on the second day. -

(Additional Condition with effect from 1 October 2014)

1.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premrses supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premrses is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to producé on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either-

{(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Page 23




Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

Schedule of Conditions attached to a Part A Premises Licence
Embedded Restrictions transferred from the Licensing Act 1964

OFF LICENCES AND OFF SALES DEPARTMENTS OF

ON LICENSED PREMISES
$.60, 63, 86, 164 Licensing Act 1964

Permitted Hours

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours. In this condition, permitted hours
means:

a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8am to 11pm

b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10am to 10.30pm
c) On Christmas Day, noon to 3pm and 7pm to 10.30pm

d) On Good Friday, 8am to 10.30pm

Restrictions

The above restrictions do not prohibit;

a) During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel;

b) The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of
the alcohel so ordered;

c) The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club;

d) The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or

supply of alcohal is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised
mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or alr forces;

Consumption

Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed on the licensed premises.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
N/A

Annex 4 - Plans : S
This licence permits the l:censable activities stated at the premises addressed above in accordance
with the plan(s) attached.

Plan of Premises

Plan/Drawing No:
Date of Plan: Plan approved 22/06/2015

Page 24




Q} W«

=
?‘ﬁ?‘«r"ﬁ“‘iti
M,,W
R prratT il ?;*;‘»5 ?t:sz«? pein

5o0f7

—

i

e = @;3

oPEY oniiER

pReCZ S

PR ] o
Caners

T

e Counthl

S

m&mﬁmﬁwgﬁﬁﬁfé&é

CpinefT £t 2 £EY

222 (= ﬂ&“ 54‘*’&;‘%?}

i xﬁ.f!f‘*




This page is intentionally left blank



A PPaaypix N
BoedA

Sarah Wilsor

From: Licensing e-mail address
Subject: FW: Ferndale Stores application
P Original Messsa

From: Gill Barrett

Sent: 24 May 2016 14:41

To: Licensing e-mail address
Subject: Ferndale Stores application

VOV OV NV

> I just wanted to register my support for the change of hours application at Ferndale
Stores. Opening from 6 am - 11 pm will be very useful to those of us working shifts and
working generally,

My address is 1@ Otters Walk, New Milton, BH25 5 RR

Regards
Gill Barrett

Sent from my iPad

ARk o sk sk o ok ok ook ok ok ook ok ok R ok ok Skl ok Ak ok sk sk ok sk S ok sk sk sk s sk okOK skeok shesk ok ok ok ok ok

The information in this electronic mail (email) and any appendices to

it is the property of New Forest District Council.

It may contain confidential information. It is intended for the addressee only.
Communications using this email system may be subject to recording

and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.

Please examine the full terms of this disclaimer by clicking on the

following hyper link: www.newforest,gov,uk\emaildisclaimer

VOV OV VY VY VY VY VY VY VY VY VY

Page 27




o)

Sarah Wilson

From:
Sent:
To:
‘Subject:

Dear Sir / Madam,

lLaura Ya-

24 May 2016 15:58

Licensing e-mail address

Ferndale Stores New Milton Application

I am writing to'show my support for the licensing application for Ferndale Stores, 36-38 Ferndale Road,

New Milton BH25 SEY.

I work shifts on the industrial estate in New Milton so having Ferndale Stores open earlier in the morning
and later at night means that if I need to pick up something either on my way to work or on my way home -
I would be able to-instead of having to take a massive detour into town.

So, I would like to show my full support for the licensing application of Ferndale Stores - I believe it would
be an asset and massive convenience as there are no shops open past 7 in our area. I don't have a car so if 1
need something from the store at say, 8pm, I'd have to walk for 40 minutes to get to a shop for whatever I
need to pick up, and then 40 minutes to get back.

Please accept this email as my full backing and support for the extended hours.

Kind Regards,
Laura Yapp

10-Otters Walk
New Milton
Hampshire
BH25 SRR

Page 28




B - @%@* M- Q\:i)@ cﬁm

fdr & Mrs Bruce-Burgess
35 Perndale Road

New Milton

Hants

BH2Z SEX

19th May 2016
New Forest District Council FAO Licensing Dept
Appletree Court
Beaulieu Road

Lyndhurst

Hants

8043 TPA

Dear Sir

RE: Licence Application. Ferndale Stores New Miltorn

We live close to Ferndale Stores in Ferndale Road. We have just learnt that the proprietors have
applied for permission to alter their opening hours. At present they open from 7am until 7pm Monday
to Friday and 8am until 2pm on a Sunday. This has worked very well from the point of view of local
residents.

1 notice on the application that the following is stated and is incorrect.

to amend the hours for the sale of alcohol off the premises to 06:00hrs to 23:00hrs,
Monday to Sunday. (Previously, 08:00hrs to 23:00hrs, Monday to Sunday). To remove
inherent conditions relating to the old Licensing Act 1964.

It is incorrect to say they have previously been open until 11pm at night.

We strongly object to this proposal and would like you to note this objection. 1 am certain that
if other local residents were aware of this they too would object to it. We cannot see any
reference to it by the shop.

We look forward to hearing from you regarding this.

Hilary Bruce-Burgess Michael Bruce-Burgess

Page 29




% Q\Q\Y&’ clion

Mr & Mrs D Gray

“Oak Tree Lodge” 34 Ferndale Road, New Milton, Hampshire, BH25 5EY

Licensing Services

New Forest District Council
Appletree Court

Lyndhurst

S043 TPA

18" May 2016
Dear Sir/Madam,

Re:  Licensing Application for Ferndale Stores (36-38 Ferndale Road, New Milton)

We are writing to voice our concerns at the extending opening hours of Ferndale Stores and, in
particular, the sale of alcohol at those premises during those hours.

We do not understand why alcohol needs to be sold between 06:00 and 08:00 and we are surmising
that the shop will therefore be opening at 06:00 in the future, As close neighbours of the shop, we
are therefore concerned about the noise from delivery lorries and customers vehicles during these
early hours.

We are also presuming that the Licensing hours up to 23:00 will be taken up by the new owners and
we are very concerned regarding any crime and disorder which may occur if this happens. In
previous years when the shop was open late into the evening, it became a gathering place for local
‘youths being able to buy alcohol and cause a public nuisance. We do not wish to return to. this
unacceptable situation.

Yours faithfully,

Mr & Mrs D usay

Page 30




Sarah Wilson

From: Joanne Luscombe on behalf of Customer Services
Sent: 23 May 2016 14:32

To: Licensing e-mail address

Subject: FW: Ferndale Stores - Variation Premises Licence

Joanne Luscombe

Customer Services Centre Manager

Business Improvement & Customer Services New Forest District Council
Tel: 823 8028 5588

Emall: joanne.luscombe@nfdc.gov.,uk

newforest.gov.uk

Download our app
New Forest In Touch

From-

Sent: 23 May 2016 14:20

To: Customer Services

Subject: Fw: Ferndale Stores - Variation Premises Licence

>—u*_nﬂ4n€nﬁ1 [V PP

»Fro
sDalec. cuvjvoscuro a4, ro
s>To!: <contact@nfdc.gov.uk>
>Subj: Ferndale Stores - Variation Premises Licence
>
s>Dear Sirs,
>
>My wife and I (Alan and Brenda Hall) live at 43 Ferndale Road New
Milton, BH25 5EX.
>
>We object to the extension of opening hours at the above premises, I
believe that an extension to 1ilpm or even 1@pm will attract the youth of the area to seek
out alcohol late in the evening and the likelyhood is that will consume the alcohol close
to the store and our house,
>
>We have lived at this address since 1999 and recall a previous shop
owner having extended licencing hours which resulted in the problem I have outlined.
Mostly on a friday or saturday youths would congregate outside the shop and drink. That,
if they are of age, is no problem in itself but they tended to get louder and louder and
cause general noise well past 1lpm.
>
»>This problem caused lack of sleep for us and our children who were
young at the time.
>
>A late licence will also attract more cars at a late time as I believe
that people doing any last minute shopping will tend to do it earlier in the evening i.e.
food for a late meal whereas some people who are seeking to continue earlier drinking will
arrive between the hours of 10pm and 1lpm;
>
>This is a mainly residential area and there are supermarkets supplying
1

Page 31




alcohol with 1 to 2 miles that are not in such a residential area.
>

>Thank you for considering my objections.

>

>

>Mr A. Hall

>

Page 32




i -,

;!r\&j‘ o U

F L ELR Y
%

" antg

¥ @%?jm?ﬁ@ﬁ |
VAT Oakueod pve~vue

NE Wy MILTOoN, MHAMPSHIPE.
RHAS . .

f\f?'él/\f f“"_/O/Q/ég'r ?/_5‘7‘“;?“[67—— CoONCIL .
APrETRES CoprT
- EYNDHoRST,

Soka 7pa.

o S;rs,
Re: Frendale STORES, RU-2S frenDPale
RO"IQD, AeEw/ MriFon, g}{ﬁ.s’ 5’57’; a
'f/ff_vbm@- LCENSING APPLL CATT oy s
(VARY PREMiSES [i Cenee S 51 R

LiceNSing sEruices, | /9/os]204C,

LICENSING
SERVICES

20 MAY 7016

HECEIVED

S ks oot o e o ctilin, the g,

lo Councie 5 amunt Ble hours Jor o oy %
C?L‘/é(/vo/u:’? b‘;}/{_ (’@% /9/\@’1/(,(/,’:{,;3 = , CQS“ O Ms p Seren. ,

Aoy o Mol N -

G aren o Hobolly periof iy and s sock,
e peace ol and f@/’“’\”’“’b (‘ostly) We had

-~

LU OGS IV Mcuvb(/7 CIhare /Jowf U&/ TS

Page 33




B

ééutj &LM’W af- C//, wWhidn e MWSMQ( o3
@JMM@ Sorntore 62/59&/\1'(/«,5 e /Jc:\,f—{j—m{?ex& ..
roody cnd ée,w\;] e o Olrndlan *S@aj:@ We, bedrane
.30 Pwi é’/\MJJ n/\ﬁﬂ\/“ / '([/7[’U—S ou::/f/( W%“O/i/{; W;&{-@(;

GessS Gy f‘/z@. o Fro

Sociwg bedancour and Aoz, Ceoaserd |

onti- ,
FMPJQQma 'L{o—wf.w@’i ﬁm«j' 'ﬁno;/wf‘e

&fﬂw e aAC 2 xﬁp«@,\_@,(:)
Aowe e Soive éﬁzwd /\479 pe~ fore., [ here ode

ity 7 ks, chaps rieeby b obicks ¢

&{, Gole Ak s éWW' Lo et {/(T"/\géﬁ'\/(-e
Shores sellarng ot pntid T30 pri Foo. e M
é hiine Cood Che wae/%wm s | loué,cuiq v \_M\;/Z o}
Al Gl el G Gha inmaliae VeCO T be
f)‘“//l (/fwfﬁ i ot %M’Q 7 e Lo Eeal |

Page 34

ISP S




=2
//f ‘&\)M( bo an wller VL‘!’W\/‘%’YD 451 e | ‘
peover owd ‘f/(/we/f ?--'dm éMV" aree were b |

&_T\S[‘y(ﬂ/f (fﬁur’%/ovaj Oe wohole SConerio ool

Ww Aees con be C\Ju{/\/té,ﬂ(’ N | w 0;7 AR
!\{’Aiofészlﬁ Zfoj, b it cre Pt W&U\'\QBIM G?O/?’OS%/ -
K lhow o o tommsrcian "ewGrprice. | |
(e wndersionnd obtor T residects whe hove
[';V\'M,J Ln Ul roadd Lﬂ\—ng, oo b W&oo/wf U\«M onee
Sold o3 (oo 62 ‘o ﬁ/vof«;gw{? AR w et olbeod

e udd o oo b lonns A ondi-Socloe betoniow,
Nolse Gamd Dg,ww\on_a,aa

s f { ) n
: i

His)

|
i
|
i

) e _ .
T - 5 ll(euf
re)
:"\f‘ N o K iq kf ‘L’{,U M
Fraricia Ave  KELT A .
o

PO Y

Page 35




5/12/2016 ?{uégimm e ‘T Gmil - Ferndele Stores
% %\}Q on

1 Gmail
M Gmai ot g ﬁf/’z’ﬂ/&.ﬁe‘fwx )25/ ¢

Ferndale Stores

12 May 2016 at-17:09

Mrs & Mrs Phillimore.
45, Ferndale Road
‘New Milton

Bh25 5EX

12t May 2016

Dear Sirs,

I have been made aware of the planning application for extending the opening hours of The following

FERNDALE-STORES, 36-38 FERNDALE ROAD, NEW MILTON; %Vaﬁaﬁm‘?remiﬁ% Liconce {834} 2710412018
- BH25 BEY

We object most strongly for the following reasons..

The current hours have been adequate and of no nuisance to the residents of Ferndale Road for years. So
why do they need to extend them, we have been told that the shop will not stay open longer than nine pm,

so why extend to 11?

At present the parking is just about tolerable; the shop clients seem to'think our garage area is available
parking, and can be abusive. when ask to move. At present the slamming. doors and-car noise is within an
acceptable fime frame, but nine pm or eleven no thank you, There is enoughtrouble parking at the momernit
but at least we know the shop will close at 7pm and there will be room to park.

The other nulsance Noise, being disturb. early in the morning with traffic and parking, this is after all a
residential area..And in the evening’s it is liable to become the local meeting point with cans of beer etc.
available and this noise would be completely unacceptable, we really do not want “lager louts and cans™

outside our door.

The other noise factor is the morning dog run, .every marning at 7 we have the dog tied up barking his head
off, we.also have the daily ones, but we live with it BUT not:at 6am in the morning. Has consideration been
shown for the families living above the Ferndale Store, there are young children above the premises.

Thank you for your attention |.am also sending a copy of this e-miail via the post.

Page 36




o8

) ;(?MW“*\ ‘
] @é@ Q‘D\Q C%\’m

Mr & Mrs J Rogerson
1 Ferndale Road
New Milton

BH25 5EX

May 21° 2016

3
AN

N

\ ot

f g
SERVICES

Licensing Services 7% MAY 20%
New Forest District Council
Appletree Court

tyndhurst

S0O43 7PA

Re: Licensing Application for 36/38 Ferndale Stores, Ferndale Road, New Milton

We are writing to express our concern at the above application, namely to keep the the shop oper
and to sell alcohol up to 11 pm.

We feel this is opening up the possibility of young people not only buying alcohol at this late hour,
but hanging about the shop drinking and noisily working their way down the road, possibly drunk
and possibly committing acts of vandalism.

This is a quiet residential area and those in the neighbourhood are mainly retired people.

There is already a late night opening shop nearby — namely McColls in Station Road and we canno’
see the need for another one.

We ask on behalf of our neighbourhood that you wold give this serious consideration.

Yours sincerely

ﬁ::/a,h gpa'mnn RUgTiawil

Page 37




e Obyeder

Sarah Wilson

From:

Sent: 23 May 2016 20:59

To: Licensing e-mail address
Subject: Alcohol license

39 Ferndale Road

New Milton

Hants

Bh25 5ex, Date 23/05/2016

Ref Premier Shop (@ 36-38 Ferndale Road Application Mr B Dissanyaka.
Application to extend Alcohol license to 6am to 11pm.

Hi i am a resident which lives opposite the shop and am not happy as the shop is going to extend there
opening times to 6am to 11pm seven days a week if this license gets the go ahead. At present it open's from
7am to 7pm six day's a week and Sunday from 8am to 2pm. These hour's are more than adequate for a
corner shop.

The new hour's will only attract anti social behavier which we had a problem with when it use to stay open
till 9pm and they removed the bench so they could not hang around it and the old people lost there seat to sit
on when they came out of hairdresser's. It will only attract people to stock up on drink.

We have a cut way to Brooke Avenue which is unlit one house away from us which we already get a
problem with empty bottles and cans and rubbish are dumped, also rubbish is put in people's hedges and it is
horrible to see and we could end up with people hanging around there .As it is a nice area to live we have
been here for 19 years and are happy.

I would ask you to refuse the exstension on the above ground's and keep the peace in our residential area .

Thank you Mr & Mrs Thomas.

Page 38




“@v\mw\ SE.

Sarah Wilson

From: Ella Ritchie on behalf of Development Control Administration
Sent: 17 May 2016°12:08

To: Licensing e-mail'address

Subject: FW: Ferndale stores

-=-~--0riginal Messag

From: Debbie Thorne

Sent: 17 May 2016 11:44

To: Development Control (Dev Control)
Subject: RE: Ferndale stores

Thank you my address is 42a Ferndale Road New Milton. BH25 5EY

The site is registration and pending application and it is for variation premises licence
S34 for Ferndale Stores under the name Mr B Dissaayaka.

As you can see we live next to the shop so it will affect us greatly
Thank you
Debbie Thorne

Lenovo TAB 2 Al10-300n 17 May 2016 11:15, "Development Control (Dev Control)"
<Dev.Control@NFDC.gov.uk> wrote:

Z~Good morning

; In order for us to register your objection please forward your address.,

i Also please provide the application number or site address to which your objection
refers.

Many thanks

Hayley Roppolo

Administpration Officer

Planning

New Forest District Council

Tel: 023 8028 5345 Option 1
Email: hayley.roppolo@nfdc.gov.uk
newforest.gov.uk ‘

Download our app
New Forest In Touch

A

----- Original Message-----

From: Debbie Thorne [r

Sent: 17 May 2016 18@:v.

To: Development Control (Dev Control)
Subject: Ferndale stores

VOV VYV VYV

Page 39




> I would like to log an objection to the proposed opening hours of the new premier shop
at Ferndale Stores. :

N A

> 6am - 11 am is not acceptable in a residential area, I have 2 young children 1 of which
has her bedroom in the front. The noise from the early start and late night will be
unacceptable.

>

> The current opening hour from 7am - 7pm are adequate as it is only a paper shop/minor
food shop and a post office.

>

Please consider my objection

-Thank you

Y VvV V V Vv

Debbie Thorne

lLenovo TAB 2 A10-30

A e b o o ok ok sk s ok s ke ek ok ok sk st ok ok sk ok sk ook ok sk sk ok sdeok sk st ok sk sk sk ok ok sk skl s skok skok ok ke ek koK

The information in this electronic mail (email) and any

appendices to it is the property of New Forest District Council.

It may contain confidential information. It is intended for the addressee only.
Communications using this email system may be subject to recording and/or monitoring
in accordance with relevant legislation.

Please examine the full terms of this disclaimer by clicking

on the following hyper link: www.newforest.gov.uk\emaildisclaimer

Vv VV V V.V V V VvV VYV VvV

Page 40



bellece %é Q%}? Elg Yo

Mr. & Mrs. S8 Wallace
1A Ferndale Road
New Milton

Hampshire

BH25 5SEX

17/05/16

Dear Sir/Madam,

RE: Licensing Application for 36/38 Ferndale Stores, Ferndale Road, New Milton,
Hampshire, BH25 SEY.

We are writing to register our objection to the above premise to extending their times to the
sale of alcohol. The basis for this opposition is a real concern, particularly the prevention of
crime, disorder and antisocial behavior,

Residents in this area are mainly elderly and young families, so therefore this is a genuine
concern that the extending hours will have a very negative impact on the quality of their/our
daily lives i.e. —times of delivery lorries, increase in traffic to and from the shop, noise and
anti-social behavior which I believe was a real issue in the past when the store closed late,

I would please urge the Committee to consider the impact this would create on the
surrounding local community which has enjoyed a relatively peaceful existence up to now if
the proposal is granted.

Yours faithfully,

S Wallace

Page 41




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

HOME OFFICE

AMENDED GUIDANCE ISSUED UNDER SECTION 182 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

MARCH 2015

THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Crime & Disorder

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on
crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety
Partnership (CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate
with the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding
relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important
role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly
licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies
are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may
include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner
agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be
appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying
firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder.
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place,
the presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and
immediately outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social
behaviour and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on
their premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its
staff, or its customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it
may be appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on
plans to ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent
dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and
town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems
allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and
facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers
and staff on the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises
supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be
the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the
licensing authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are
competent and appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key
person who will usually be responsible for the day to day management of the
premises by the premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A
condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances
where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular
premises, poor management competency could give rise to issues of crime and
disorder and public safety.

Page 43



Appendix 3

Public safety

26

2.7

2.8

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in
other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries
and other immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also
promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There will of course be
occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health
more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this would be
outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

e Fire safety;

e Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

e Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for
example communications networks with the police and signing up for local
incident alerts (see paragraph 2.4 above);

e Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and
appropriate first aid kits;

e Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example,
through the provision of information on late-night transportation);

e Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass
bottles;

e Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.11-2.12, and Chapter 10; and

e Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in
paragraph 2.3 above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and
disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between
premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in
Chapter 8 (8.33- 8.41), applicants should consider when making their application
which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and
demonstrate how they achieve that.

Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

29

Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave
their premises. Measures that may assist include:

e Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can
provide safe transportation home; and

o Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading
to and from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

2.10 Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or

for employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of

Page 44



Appendix 3

certain equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a
licensing condition to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be
permissible to require as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks
on this equipment to be conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these
checks to be retained by the premises licence holder or club provided this does not
duplicate or gold-plate a requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be
permissible for licensing authorities, if they receive relevant representations from
responsible authorities or any other persons, to attach conditions which require
equipment of particular standards to be maintained on the premises. Responsible
authorities — such as health and safety authorities — should therefore make their
expectations clear in this respect to enable prospective licence holders or clubs to
prepare effective operating schedules and club operating schedules.

Safe capacities

2.1

212

213

“Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of
public safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a
capacity has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to
reproduce it in a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down
conditions which conflict with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it
appropriate for a new capacity to be attached to the premises which would apply at
any material time when the licensable activities are taking place and make
representations to that effect. For example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits
may be appropriate in preventing disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the
risks of crowds becoming frustrated and hostile.

The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the
premises at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue
authority under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application
for a premises licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing
permitted capacity where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special
provisions set out in section 177 of the 2003 Act1, the applicant should conduct their
own risk assessment as to the appropriate capacity of the premises. They should
send their recommendation to the fire and rescue authority which will consider it and
decide what the “permitted capacity” of those premises should be.

Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but
does not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public Nuisance

214 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate
to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the
effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and
working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which
may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise
nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Page 45



Appendix 3

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

219

2.20

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of
the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse
effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to
health.

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain
time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber
speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate.
However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in
circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter
15). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should
be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its
licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those
living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that
other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the
early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep
or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live
music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to
noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any
disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in
anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if
they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of
outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Page 46



Appendix 3

Protection of Children from Harm

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to
children. Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which
are appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly
considered in circumstances where:

adult entertainment is provided;

e a member or members of the current management have been convicted for
serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking
(other than in the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and
17 year olds consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult
during a table meal);

e itis known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

e in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of
alcohol for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide
entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an
exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual
nature. Applicants, responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to
consider this point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease,
lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong
and offensive language.

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to
ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to
be taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can
include:

Page 47



Appendix 3

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

e restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages

when particular specified activities are taking place;

restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

age restrictions (below 18);

restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a

combination of requirements which provide that children under a particular

age must be accompanied by an adult); and

o full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable
activities are taking place.

Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may
include, amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol
can cause to underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person,
presents evidence to the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to
children (such as ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons
under 18 years old with alcohol-related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be
considered, and the licensing authority should also consider what action is
appropriate to ensure this licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to
applications for the grant of a licence in areas where evidence is presented on high
levels of alcohol-related harms in persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the
licensing authority considers what conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this
objective is promoted effectively.

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission
of children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either
by a body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in
the licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which
has been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given
in Chapter 10.

Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to
a premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a
sufficient number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the
children during any emergency.

Page 48



Appendix 4

HOME OFFICE

AMENDED GUIDANCE ISSUED UNDER SECTION 182 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

MARCH 2015

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives

9.41

9.42

9.43

Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for
the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations
should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the
case may be.

The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it
is intended to achieve.

Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable
to achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to
decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider
the potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as
the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it
is imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its
determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and
nothing outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the
licensing authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in
place to mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing
objectives and the track record of the business. Further advice on determining what
is appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in
Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based
on an assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against
making the determination.

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Application to Vary a Premises Licence - Ferndale Stores, 36-38 Ferndale Road, New Milton
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


